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customers) to directly infringe the Asserted Claims of the ’161 patent by selling the WUPP X

Grip Mount, and marketing the product in a manner that encourages infringement. Upon

information and belief, at least one customer has directly infringed one or more claims of the

’161 patent. Further, WUPP has provided and continues to provide promotional materials

advertising the WUPP X-Grip Mount for use as described and claimed in the ’161 patent. For

example, WUPP’s website markets the WUPP X-Grip Mount, describing and depicting its

functionality as a mounting apparatus with a clamping mechanism intended to be used in a way

that infringes the ’161 patent. See, e.g., Exhibit 36; Kaempf Decl. 1]17. .

74. WUPP also contributorily infringes the ’161 patent. WUPP offers to sell for '

importation into the United States the WUPP X-Grip Mount knowing that such product is used

to infringe or more claims of the ’161 patent, that the mounting apparatus product is especially

made for use in the infringement of the ’161 patent, and is not a staple commodity of commerce

that is suitable for substantial non-infringing uses.

75. i A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’657 patent to

WUPP X-Grip Mount is attached hereto as Exhibit 38. Exhibit 38 shows that use of the WUPP

X-Grip Mount infringes at least the asserted independent claims of the ’657 patent.

76. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’636 patent to

WUPP X-Grip Mount is attached hereto as Exhibit 39. Exhibit 39 shows that use of the WUPP

X-Grip Mount infringes at least the asserted independent claims of the ’636 patent.

77. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’278 patent to

WUPP X-Grip Mount is attached hereto as Exhibit 40. Exhibit 40 shows that use of the WUPP

X-Grip Mount infringes at least the asserted independent claims of the ’278 patent.
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78. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’204 patent to

WUPP X-Grip Mount is attached hereto as Exhibit 4l. Exhibit 41 shows that use of the WUPP

X-Grip Mount infringes at least the asserted independent claims of the ’204 patent.

I 79. As shown in the photographs attached as Exhibits 34 and 35 and described in

Kaempf Decl. 1]1]15-16, the WUPP X-Grip Mount bears the design protected by the ‘O86

trademark. "

2) Specific Instance of Sale and Importation .

80. Respondent WUPP imports, sells for importation into the United States, and/or

sells within the United States after importation the WUPP X-Grip Mount, depicted in the

photographs of Exhibits 34 and 35, and the webpage printout in Exhibit 36. Pursuant to

Commission Rule 210.l2(a)(3), Exhibits 42 and 44 are copies of order details regarding a sale of

WUPP’s X-Grip Mount Withinthe United States. Exhibit 42 corresponds to the product depicted

in Exhibit 34 sold by reseller Yingxue Technology. See KaempfDecl. 1]19. Exhibit 44

corresponds to the product depicted in Exhibit 35 sold by Amazon reseller, BlueFire. See

Kaempf Decl. 1]1]21-22; see also Exhibit 45. _

81. As shown in the Order Details contained in Exhibit 42, the packaging information

for the WUPP X-Grip Mount sold by Yingxue indicates this product was imported from Qhina.

See Kaempf Decl. 1]19. Additionally, Exhibit 43, which is the Package Information for the

WUPP X-Grip Mount sold by Yingxue, indicates that the product was imported from China. See

Kaempf Decl. 1]20; see also Exhibit 46; Kaempf Decl. 1]23.

82. As shown in the website printout contained in Exhibit 19, BlueFire is located in

China and sells products through Amazon.com. Id. 1]7. On information and belief, BlueFire
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ships the WUPP X-Grip Mount from China for distribution in the U.S. through resellers such as

Amazon.com.

83. Thus, WUPP is violating Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 by importing,

selling for importation into the United States, and/or selling within the United States after

importation the WUPP X-Grip Mount and other reasonably similar products and devices, which

directly, either literally or imder the doctrine of equivalents, infringe ’l61 patent, the ’657 patent,

the ’636 patent, the ’278 patent, the ’204 patent, and the ’086 trademark.

B. N-Star

1) Infringement

84. On information and belief, N-Star imports, sells for importation into the United

States, and/or sells within the United States after iinportation mounting apparatuses that infringe,

directly or indirectly, the ’l6l patent, the ’657 patent, the ’636 patent, the ’278 patent, the ’204

patent, the "148 patent, and the ’086 trademark. /’

' a. Accused Product: N-Star Orion

85. NPI has obtained at least two samples of the mounting apparatus product, the N

Star Orion, which, N-Star imported, sold for importation, and/or sold after importation, and

which infringe the Asserted Claims of the ’161 patent, the ’657 patent, and the ’086 trademark.

K 86. Photographs of the N-Star Orion are attached as Exhibit 47. The product shown

in Exhibit 47 is sold by the reseller Guangzhou Kean Products Co, Ltd (“Kean”). See Kaempf

Decl. {I24. As shown in Exhibit 47, this product contains the marking, “Orion,” and N-Star’s

brand logos. See id. Upon information and belief, each of these products is manufactured by

WUPP.
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87. Printouts of N-Star’s World.Taobao.com website, which confirm that N-Star sells

the product shown in Exhibit 47 into, or for importation into, the U.S., are attached as Exhibit 48

and describedin Zeng Decl. 1111.

88. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ‘161 patent to N

Star Orion is attached hereto as Exhibit 49. Exhibit 49 shows that use of the N-Star Orion

infringes at least the asserted independent claims of the ’161 patent. i

89. N-Star has indirectly infringed at least one claim of the ’l6l patent by inducing

infringement. Upon information and belief, N-Star has actual knowledge of the ’161 patent and

that its actions would cause direct infringement as a result of NPI’s marking or otherwise, or

alternatively was willfully blind to these facts. For example, NPI marks its products that practice

the ’161 patent with the notation “RAM® MOUNTS,” ?‘X—GRIl’®,”f‘PATENTED,” and NPI’s

website associates its products with the ’l61 patent. Upon information and belief, N-Star copied

the design of NPI’s practicing products. As a result of NPI’s marking, N-Star should have

investigated the patented nature of NPI’s design. Upon information and belief, N-Star obtained

actual knowledge of the ’16l patent as a result of NPI’s marking of its products. To the extent

N-Star did not obtain actual knowledge of the ’161 patent, it was willfully blind to the existence

of the ’l6l patent and its infringement thereof. ‘

90. Additionally, N-Star has been aware of the ’161 patent and of NPI’s allegations of

infringement since at least being sent this Complaint. Despite N-Star’s awareness of the ’161

patent and NPI’s allegations, N-Star has knowingly and actively induced others (for example, its

customers) to directly infringe the Asserted Claims of the ’16l patent by selling the N-Star

Orion, and marketing the product in a manner that encourages infringement. Upon information

and belief, at least one customer has directly infringed one or more claims of the i161 patent.
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Further, N-Star has provided and continues to provide promotional materials advertising the N

Star Orion for use as described and claimed in the ’l6l patent. For example, N-Star’s website

and N-Star’s World.Taobao.com website markets the N-Star Orion product, describing and

depicting its functionality as a mounting apparatus with a clamping mechanism intended to be .

used in a way that infringes the ’161 patent. See, e.g., Exhibit 48; Zeng Decl. 1]11.

91. N-Star also contributorily infringes the ’l6l patent. N-Star offers to sell for

importation into the United States the N-Star Orion knowing that such product is used to infringe

or more claims of the ’l6‘l patent, that the mounting apparatus product is especially made for use

in the infringement of the’ 161 patent, and is not a staple commodity of commerce that is suitable

for substantial non-infringing uses.

92. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’657 patent to N

Star Orion is attached hereto as Exhibit 50. Exhibit 50 shows that use of the N-Star Orion

infringes at least the asserted independent claims of the ’657 patent. V

93. As shown in the photographs attached as Exhibit 47 and described in Kaempf

Decl.1I 24, the N-Star Orion bears the design protected by the ’O86trademark.

V b. Accused Product: N-Star Scorpio i

94. NPI has obtained at least three copies of one other mounting apparatus product,

the N-Star Scorpio, which N-Star imported, sold for importation, and/or sold after importation,

and which infringe the Asserted Claims of the ’636 patent, the ’278 patent, the ’204 patent, the

’148 patent, and the ’086_trademark. Photographs of the N-Star Scorpio are attached as Exhibits

51, 52, and 53. The product shown in Exhibit 51 is sold by the Amazon reseller, “EasyCube.”

The product shown in Exhibit 52 is sold by N-Star. The product shown in Exhibit 53 is sold by

the reseller Guangzhou Kean Products Co., Ltd. (“Kean”). As shown in Exhibits 51, 52, and 53,

each of these products contains an identical mounting platform, and further contains the marking,
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“Scorpio,” and/or one or more of N-Star’s brand logos. See KaempfDee1. W 25-27. Upon

information and belief, each of these products is manufactured by N-Star.

95. A claim chart‘that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’636 patent to

the N-Star Scorpio is attached hereto as Exhibit 54. Exhibit 54 shows that use of the N-Star ‘

Scorpio infringes at least the asserted independent claims of the ’636 patent.

96. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’278 patent to

the N-Star Scorpio is attached hereto as Exhibit 55. Exhibit 55 shows that use of the N-Star

Scorpio infringes at least the asserted independent claims of the ’278 patent.

97. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’204 patent to

the N-Star Scorpio is attached hereto as Exhibit 56. Exhibit 56 shows that use of the N-Star

Scorpio infringes at least the asserted independent claims of the ’204 patent.

98. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’148 patent to

the N-Star Scorpio is attached hereto as Exhibit 57. Exhibit 57 shows that use of the N-Star

Scorpio infringes at least the asserted independent claims of the ’148 patent.

99. ~ As shown in the photographs attached as Exhibits 51, 52 and 53 and described in

Kaempf Decl. 111]25-27, the N-Star Scorpio bears the design protected by the ’086 trademark.

2) Specific Instance of Sale and Importation

100. Respondent N-Star imports, sells for importation into the United States, and/or

sells within the United States after importation the N-Star Orion product, depicted in Exhibit 47.

Pursuant to Commission Rule 2lO.l2(a)(3), Exhibit 58 is a copy of an invoice showing a sale of

N-Star’s Orion product within and/or for importation into the United States.

101. Respondent N-Star imports, sells for importation into the United States, and/or

sells within the United States after importation the N-Star Scorpio product, depicted in Exhibits
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52 and 53. Pursuant to Commission Rule 2lO.l2(a)(3), Exhibits 58 and 59 are copies of receipts

and/or order details showing a sale of N-Star’s Scorpio product within and/or for importation

into the United States. Exhibit 58 corresponds to the product depicted in Exhibit 53 sold by

reseller Kean. Exhibit 59 corresponds to the product depicted in Exhibit 52 sold by N-Star.

l02. As shown in the copy of the invoice contained in Exhibit 58, the N-Star Orion

product and the N-Star Scorpio product sold by Kean are imported from China. See Kaempf

Decl. Tl29.

103. As shown in the copy of the order details contained in Exhibit 59, the N-Star

Scorpio product sold by N-Star are imported from China. See Zeng Decl. 1[12.

104. Thus, N-Star is violating Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 by importing,

selling for importation into the United States, and/or selling within the United States after

importation the N-Star Orion, N-Star Scorpio, and other reasonably similar products and devices,

which directly, either literally or under the doctrine of equivalents, infringe the ’161 patent, the

’657 patent, the ’636 patent, the ’278 patent, the ’204 patent, the ’l48 patent, and the ’086

trademark. .

C. MWUPP

1) Infringement

105. On information and belief, MWUPP imports, sells for importation into the United

States, and/or sells within the United States after importation mounting apparatuses that infringe,

directly or indirectly, the ’161 patent, the ’657 patent, the ’636 patent, the ’278 patent, the ’204

patent, the ’148 patent, and the ’086 trademark.

a. Accused Product: MWUPP Universal X-Grip Mount

_106. NPI has obtained at least two samples of the mounting apparatus product, the

MWUPP Universal X-Grip Mount, which MWUPP imported, sold for importation, and/or sold
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after importation, and which infringes the Asserted Claims of the ’l61 patent, the ’657 patent,

and the ’086 trademark. Photographs of the MWUPP Universal X-Grip Mount are attached as

Exhibits 60 and 61. The product depicted in Exhibit 60 is sold by MWUPP. The product ,_

depicted in Exhibit 61 is sold by Prolech. As shown in Exhibits 60 and 61, each of these

products contains an identical mounting platform, and further contains the marking, “MWUPP,”

and/or MWUPP’s brand logo. Upon information and belief, each of these products is

manufactured by MWUPP.

107. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’l6l patent to

the MWUPP Universal X-Grip Mount is attached hereto as Exhibit 62. Exhibit 62 shows that

use of the MWUPP Universal X-Grip Mount infringes at least the asserted independent claims of

the ’l61 patent.

108. MWUPP has indirectly infringed at least one claim of the ’161 patent by inducing

infringement. Upon information and belief, MWUPP has actual knowledge of the ’161 patent

and that its actions would cause direct infringement as a result of NPI’s marking or otherwise, or

alternatively was willfully blind to these facts. For example, NPI marks its products that practice

the ’l61 patent with the notation “RAM® MOUNTS,” “X-GRIP®,” “PATENTED,” and NPI’s
/

website associates its products with the ’161 patent. Upon information and belief, MWUPP

copied the design of NPI’s practicing products. As a result of NPI’s marking, MWUPP should

have investigated the patented nature of NPl’s design. Upon information and belief, MWUPP

obtained actual knowledge of the ’16l patent as a result of NPI’s marking of its products. To the

extent MWUPP did not obtain actual knowledge of the ’l61 patent, it was willfully blind to the .

existence of the ’l61 patent and its infringement thereof.
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109. Additionally, MWUPP has been aware of the ’l6l patent and of NPI’s allegations

of infringement since at least being sent this Complaint. Despite MWUPP’s awareness of the

’l 61 patent and NPI’s allegations, MWUPP has knowingly and actively induced others (for _

example, its customers) to directly infringe the Asserted Claims of the ’161 patent by selling the

MWUPP Universal X-Grip Mount, and marketing the product in a manner that encourages

infringement. Upon infonnation and belief, at least one customer has directly infringed one or

more claims of the ’l6l patent. Further, MWUPP has provided and continues to provide

promotional materials advertising the MWUPP Universal X-Grip Mount for use as described and

claimed in the ’161 patent. For example, MWUPP’s World.Taobao.com website markets the

MWUPP Universal X-Grip Mount, describing and depicting its functionality as a mounting

apparatus with a clamping mechanism intended to be used in a way that infringes the ’161

patent. See, e.g., Exhibit 63; Zeng Decl.1l.13.

110. MWUPP also contributorily infringes the ’161 patent. MWUPP offers to sell for

importation into the United States the MWUPP Universal X-Grip knowing that such product is

used to infringe or more claims of the ’16l patent, that the mounting apparatus product is

especially made for use in the infringement of the ’161 patent, and is not a staple commodity of

commerce that is suitable for substantial non-infringing uses.

111. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’657 patent to

the MWUPP Universal X-Grip Mount is attached hereto as Exhibit 64. Exhibit 64 shows that

use of the MWUPP Universal X-Grip Mount infringes at least the asserted independent claims of

the ’657 patent. 1 
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112. As shown in the photographs attached as Exhibits 60 and 61 and described in

Kaempf Dec]. 111]30-31, the MWUPP Universal X-Grip Mount bears the design protected by the

’086 trademark. I

~ ' b. Accused Product: MWUPP Universal Fingergrip Mount

113. NPI has obtained at least two samples of one other mounting apparatus product,

the MWUPP Universal Fingergrip Mount, which MWUPP imported, sold for importation, and/or

sold after importation, and which infringes the Asserted Claims of the ’636 patent, the ’278

patent, the ’204 patent, the ’148 patent, and the ’086 trademark. Photographs of the MWUPP

Universal Fingergrip Mount are attached as Exhibits 65 and 66. The product depicted in Exhibit

65 is sold by MWUPP. The product depicted in Exhibit 66 is sold by Yingxue Technology. As

shown in Exhibits 65 and 66, each of these products contains an identical mounting platform,

and further contains the marking, “MWUPP,” and/or MWUPP’s brand logo. Upon information

and belief, each of these products is manufactured by MWUPP. l ’

l 14. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’636 patent to

the MWUPP Universal Fingergrip Mount is attached hereto as Exhibit 67. Exhibit 67 shows that

use of the MWUPP Universal Fingergrip Mount infringes at least the asserted independent

claims of the ’636 patent.

115. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’278 patent to

the MWUPP Universal Fingergrip Mount is attached hereto as Exhibit 68. Exhibit 68 shows that
I

use of the MWUPP Universal Fingergrip Mount infringes at least the asserted independent ,

claims of the ’278 patent. .

116. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’204 patent to

the MWUPP Universal Fingergrip Mount is attached hereto as Exhibit 69. Exhibit 69 shows that
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use of the MWUPP Universal.Fingergrip Mount infringes at least the asserted independent

claims of the ’204 patent.

ll7. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ‘I48 patent to

the MWUPP Universal Fingergrip Mount is attached hereto_asExhibit 70. Exhibit 70 shows that

use of the MWUPP Universal Fingergrip Mount infringes at least the asserted independent

claims of the ’148 patent.

118. As shown in the photographs attached as Exhibits 65 and 66 and described in

Kaempf Decl. 11$]34-35, the MWUPP Universal Fingergrip Mount bears the design protected by

the ’086 trademark.

2) Specific Instance of Sale and Importation

119. Respondent MWUPP imports, sells for importation into the United ‘States,and/or

sells within the United States after importation the MWUPP Universal X-Grip Mount, depicted

in Exhibits 60 and 61. Pursuantto Commission Rule 2l0.l2(a)(3), Exhibits 71 and 73 are copies

of order details and/or package information showing a sale of MWUPP’s Universal X-Grip

Mount within and/or for importation into the United States. Exhibit 71 is a copy of Order Details

that corresponds to the product depicted in Exhibit 60 sold by MWUPP. See Zeng Dec]. 1]14.

Exhibit 73 is a copy of Order Details that corresponds to the purchase of the product depicted in

the website shown in Exhibit 74, which is the product shown in Exhibit 61 sold by Prolech. See

KaempfDecl. 111]36-37.

120. Respondent MWUPP imports, sells for importation into the United States, and/or

sells within the United States after importation the Universal Fingergrip Mount, depicted in

Exhibits 65 and 66. Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(a)(3), Exhibits 71 and 75 are copies

order details showing a sale of MWUPP’s Universal Fingergrip Mount within and/or for
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importation into the United States. Exhibit 71 corresponds to the product depicted in Exhibit 65

sold by MWUPP. See Zcng Decl. 1]14. Exhibit 75 corresponds to the product depicted in the

website shown in Exhibit 76, which is the product shown in Exhibit 66 sold by Yingxue. See

KaempfDecl.1l 38; see also id. at 1]5; Exhibit 17. -»

121. As shown in the copy of the Order Details contained in Exhibit 71, the MWUPP

Universal X-Grip Mount and the MWUPP Fingergrip Mount purchased from MWUPP are A

imported from China. See Zeng Decl. W 13-15; see also Exhibits 63 and 72.

122. As shown in the copy of the Order Detail contained in Exhibit 73, the MWUPP

Universal X-Grip Mount sold by Prolech indicates this product was shipped from China and

imported into the U.S. See Kaempf Decl. 1]36. _

123. As shown in the copy of the Order Detail contained in Exhibit 75, the MWUPP

Universal Fingergrip Mount sold by Yingxue indicates this product was imported into the U.S.

See Kaempf Decl. 1]38. Additionally, Exhibit 76, which is the Package Information for the

MWUPP Universal Fingergrip Mount sold by Yingxue, indicates that the product was imported

from China. See Kaempf Decl. 1]39. '

174. Thus, MWUPP is violating Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 by importing,

selling for importation into the United States, and/or selling within the United States after

importation the Universal X-Grip Mount, the Universal Fingergrip.Mount, and other reasonably

similar products and devices, which directly, either literally or under the doctrine of equivalents,

infringe the ’16_1patent, the ’657 patent, the ’636 patent, the ’278 patent, the ’204 patent, the

’148 patent, and the ’O86trademark.
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D. Yingxue Technology

1) Infringement

125. On information and belief, Yingxue Technology imports, sells for importation

into the United States, and/or sells within the United States after importation mounting

apparatuses that infringe, directly or indirectly, the ’161 patent, the ’657 patent, the ’636 patent,

the ’278 patent, the ’204 patent, the ’148 patent and the ’086 trademark.

a. Yingxue Technology’s Sale_of VVUPPX-Grip

126. NPI has obtained at least one mounting apparatus product, the WUPP X-Grip

Mount, which Yingxue Technology imported, sold for importation, and/or sold after importation,

and which infringes the Asserted Claims of the ’161 patent, the ’657 patent, the ’636 patent, the

’278 patent, the ’204 patent, and the ’086 trademark. As described above, photographs of the

WUPP X-Grip Mount sold by Yingxue Technology are attached as Exhibit 34.

127. As shown in Exhibit 37, the WUPP X-Grip Mount infringes at least the asserted

independent claims of the ’161 patent.

128. Yingxue Technology has indirectly infringed at least one claim of the ’l 61 patent

by inducing infringement. Upon information and belief, Yingxue Technology has actual

knowledge of the ’161 patent and that its actions would cause direct infringement as a result of

NPI’s marking or otherwise, or altematively was willfully blind to these facts. For example, NPI

marks its products that practice the ’161patent with the notation “RAM® MOUNTS,” “X

GRIP®,” “PATENTED,” and NPI’s website associates its products with the ’l61 patent. Upon

information and belief, Yingxue Technology copied the design of NPI’s practicing products. As

a result of NPl’s marking, Yingxue Technology should have investigated the patented nature of

NPI’s design. Upon infomiation and belief, Yingxue Technology obtained actual knowledge of

the ’l6l patent as a result of NPI’s marking of its products. To the extent Yingxue Technology
. r '
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Ivdidnot obtain actual knowledge of the ’161 patent, it was willfully blind to the existence of the

’161 patent and its infringement thereof.

129. Additionally, Yingxue Technology has been aware of the ’l61 patent and of

NP1’s allegations of infringement since at least being sent this Complaint. Despite Yingxue

Techn0logy’s awareness of the ’161 patent and NPl’s allegations, Yingxue Technology has

knowingly and actively induced others (for example, its customers) to directly infringe the

Asserted Claims of the’ 161 patent by selling the WUPP X-Grip Mount, and marketing the

product in a manner that encourages infringement. Upon information and belief, at least one

customer has directly infringed one or more claims of the ’l 61 patent. Further, Yingxue

Technology has provided and continues to provide promotional materials advertising the WUPP

X-Grip Mount for use as described and claimed in the ’161 patent. For example, Yingxue

Technology’s AliExpress.com website markets the WUPP X-Grip Mount, describing and

depicting its functionality as a mounting apparatus with a clamping mechanism intended to be H

used in a way that infringes the ’161 patent. See, e.g., Exhibit 77; Kaempf Decl. 1]40.

130. Yingxue Technology also contributorily infringes the ’161 patent. Yingxue

Technology offers to sell for importation into the United States the WUPP X-Grip_MoLu1t

knowing that such product is used to infringe or more claims of the ’161 patent, that the

mounting apparatus product is especially made for use in the infringement of the ’161 patent, and

is not a staple commodity of commerce that is suitable for substantial non-infringing uses.

131. As shown in Exhibit 38, the WUPP X-Grip Mount infringes at least the asserted

independent claims of the ’657 patent.

132. ., As shown in Exhibit 39, the WUPP X-Grip Mount infringes at least the asserted

independent claims of the ’636 patent.

1
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133. As shown in Exhibit 40, the WUPP X-Grip Mount infringes at least the asserted

independent claims of the ’278 patent. - _

134. As shown in Exhibit 41, the WUPP X-Grip Mount infringes at least the asserted

independent claims of the ’204 patent.

135. As shown in the photographs attached as Exhibit 34 and described in Kaempf

Decl. 1]15, the WUPP X-Grip Mount bears the design protected by the ’O86trademark. '

. b. Yingxue Techn0l0gy’s Sale of MWUPP Fingergrip

136. NPI has obtained at least one mounting apparatus product, the MWUPP

Fingergrip, which Yingxue Technology imported, sold for importation, and/or sold after

importation, and which infringes the Assened Claims of the ’636 patent, the ’278 patent, the

’204 patent, the ’148 patent and the ’O86trademark. As described above, photographs of the

MWUPP Fingergrip sold by Yingxue Technology are attached as Exhibit 66.

137. As shown in Exhibit 67, the MWUPP Fingergrip infringes at least the asserted

independent claims of the ’636 patent. '

1-38. As shown in Exhibit 68, the MWUPP Fingergrip Mount infringes at least the

asserted independent claims of the ’278 patent.

139. As shown in Exhibit 6869 the MWUPP Fingergrip Mount infringes at least the

asserted independent claims of the ’204 patent.

- 140. As shown in Exhibit 70, the MWUPP Fingergrip Mount infringes at least the

asserted independent claims of the ’148 patent.

141. As shown in the photographs attached as Exhibit 66 and described in Kaempf

Decl. 1[34, the MWUPP Fingergrip bears the design protected by the ’O86trademark.
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2) Specific Instance of Sale and Importation

142. Respondent Yingxue Teclmology imports, sells for importation into the United

States, and/or sells within the United States after importation the WUPP X-Grip Mount, depicted

in Exhibit 34. Pursuant to Commission Rule 2l0.l2(a)(3), Exhibit 42 is a copy of a receipt

showing a sale of Yingxuc Technology’s WUPP X-Grip Mount within and/or for importation

into the United States. Additionally, Exhibit 43, which is the Package Information for the WUPP

X-Grip Mount sold by Yingxue, indicates that the product was imported from China. See

KaempfDecl.1[1I l9-20.

143. Respondent Yingxue Technology imports, sells for importation into the United

States, and/or sells within the United States after importation the MWUPP Fingergrip, depicted

in Exhibit 66. Pursuant to Commission Rule 2l0.12(a)(3), Exhibit 75 is a copy of an Order

Detail showing a sale of Yingxue Teclmology’s MWUPP Fingergrip within and/or for

importation into the United States. See KaempfDecl.1l 38; see also id. at 1]3; Exhibit 17. As

shown in the copy of the Order Detail contained in Exhibit 75, the MWUPP Universal Fingergrip

Mount sold by Yingxue indicates this product was imported into the U.S. See Kaempf Decl.

1]38. Additionally, Exhibit 76, which is the Package Infonnation for the MWUPP Universal

Fingergrip Mount sold by Yingxue, indicates that the product was imported from China. See

Kaempf Decl. 1l39. x 

144. Thus, Yi-ngxueTechnology is violating Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 by

importing, selling for importation into the United States, and/or selling within the United States

after importation the WUPP X-Grip Mount, the MWUPP Fingergrip Mount, and other

reasonably similar products and devices, which directly, either literally or under the doctrine of

36



equivalents, infringe the ’161 patent, the ’657 patent, the ’636 patent, the ’278 patent, the ’204

patent, the ’148 patent and the ’086 trademark.

E. BlueFire

1) Infringement

145. On information and belief, BlueFire imports, sells for importation into the United

States, and/or sells within the United States after importation mounting apparatuses that infringe,

directly or indirectly, the ’l6l patent, the ’657 patent, the ’636 patent, the ’278 patent, the ’204

patent, and the ’086 trademark.

146. NPI has obtained at least one mounting apparatus product, the WUPP X-Grip

Mount, which BlueFire imported, sold for importation, and/or sold afler importation, and which

infringes the Asserted Claims of the ’l6l patent, the ’657 patent, the ’636 patent, the ’278 patent,

the ’204 patent, and the ’086 trademark. As described above, photographs of the WUPP X-Grip
, .

Mount sold by BlueFire are attached as Exhibit 35.

147. As shown in Exhibit 37, the WUPP X-Grip Mount infringes at least the asserted

independent claims of the ’161 patent.

148. BlueFire has indirectly infringed at least one claim of the ’161 patent by inducing

infringement. Upon infonnation and belief, BlueFire has actual knowledge of the ’161 patent

and that its actions would cause direct infringement as a result of NPI’s marking or otherwise, or

alternatively was willfully blind to these facts. For example, NP1marks its products that practice

the ’l6l patent with the notation “RAM® MOUNTS,” “_X-GRIP®,”“PATENTED,” and NPI’s

website associates its products with the ’l6l patent. Upon information and belief, BlueFire

copied the design of NPI’s practicing products. As a result of NPI’s marking, BlueFire should

have investigated the patented nature of 1\lPI’sdesign. Upon information and belief, BlueFire

obtained actual knowledge of the ’161 patent as a result of NPI’s marking of its products. To the
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extent BlueFire did not obtain actual knowledge of the ’161 patent, it was willfully blind to the

existence of the ’l61 patent and its infringement thereof. ‘

149. Additionally, BlueFire has been aware of the ’l61 patent and of NPl’s allegations

of infringement since at least being sent this Complaint. Despite BlueFire’s awareness of the

’l61 patent and NPI’s allegations, BlueFire has knowingly and actively induced others (for

example, its customers) to directly infringe the Asserted Claims of the ’161 patent by selling the

WUPP X-Grip Mount, and marketing the product in a manner that encourages infringement.

Upon infonnation and belief, at least one customer has directly infringed one or more claims of

the ’l61 patent. Further, BlueFire has provided and continues to provide promotional materials

advertising the WUPP X-Grip Mount for use as described and claimed in the ’161 patent. For

example, BlueFire’s Amazon Webpagemarkets the WUPP X-Grip Mount, describing and

depicting its functionality as a mounting apparatus with a clamping mechanism intended to be

used in a way that infringes the ’161 patent. See, e.g.-,Exhibit 45; KaempfDecl. 1[22.

150. BlueFire also contributorily infringes the ’l61 patent. BlueFire offers to sell for

importation into the United States the WUPP X-Grip Mount knowing that such product is used

to infringe or more claims of the ’161 patent, that the mounting apparatus product is especially

made for use in the infringement of the ’l61 patent, and is not a staple commodity of commerce

that is suitable for substantial non-infringing uses. 1

151. As shown in Exhibit 38, the WUPP X-Grip Mount infringes at least the asserted

independent claims of the ’657 patent. .

152. As shown in Exhibit 39, the WUPP X-Grip Mount infringes at least the asserted

independent claims of the ’636 patent.
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153. As shown in Exhibit 40, the WUPP X-Grip Mount infringes at least the asserted

independent claims of the ’278 patent.

154. As shown in Exhibit 41, the WUPP X-Grip Mount infringes at least the asserted

independent claims of the ’204 patent. -‘Y I

155. As shown in the photographs attached as Exhibit 35 and described in Kaempf

Decl. 1]16, the WUPP X-Grip Mount bears the design protected by the ’086 trademark.

2) Specific Instance of Sale and Importation

156. Respondent BlueFire imports, sells for importation into the United States, and/or

sells within the United States after importation the WUPP X-Grip Mount, depicted in Exhibit 35.

Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(a)(3), Exhibit 44 is a copy of an Order Detail showing a

sale of BlueFire’s Universal Motorcycle Holder Stand Mount Bracket within and/or for

importation into the United States. if

157. As shown in the website printout contained in Exhibit 19, BlueFire is located in

China andlsells products through Amazon.com. Kaempf Decl. 1]7. On information and belief,

BlueFire ships the WUPP X-Grip Mount from China for distribution in the U.S. through resellers

such as AmaZon.com. 

158.7‘ Thus, BlueFire is violating Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 by importing,

selling for importation into the United States, and/or selling within the United States afier

importation the,WUPP X-Grip Mount and other reasonably similar products and devices, which

directly, either literally or under the doctrine of equivalents, infringe the ’161 patent, the ’657

patent, the ’636 patent, the ’278 patent, the ’204 patent, and the ’086 trademark.
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F. V Kean

1) Infringement

159. On information and belief, Kean imports, sells for importation into the United

States, and/or sells within the United States after importation mounting apparatuses that infringe,

directly or indirectly, the ’l6l patent, the ’657 patent, the ’636 patent, the ’278 patent, the ’204

patent, the ’l48 patent, and the ’O86trademark.

a. Kean’s Sale of N-Star Orion

160. NPI has obtained at least one mounting apparatus product, the N-Star Orion,

which Kean imported, sold for importation, and/or sold afier importation, and which infringes

the Asserted Claims of the ’161 patent and the ’657 patent, and the ’O86trademark. As

described above, photographs of the N-Star Orion sold by Kean are attached as Exhibit 47.

l61. As shown in Exhibit 50, the N-Star Orion infringes at least the asserted

independent claims of the ’161 patent. 

162. Kean has indirectly infringed at least one claim of the ’161 patent by inducing

infringement. Upon information and belief, Kean has actual knowledge of the ’161 patent and

that its actions would cause direct infringement as a result ofNPI’s marking or otherwise, or

alternatively was willfully blind to these facts. For example, NPI marks its products that practice

the ’l6l patent Withthe notation “RAM® MOUNTS,” “X-GRIP®,” “PATENTED,” and NPI’s

website associates its products with the ’l6l patent. Upon infonnation and belief, Kean copied

the design of NPI’s practicing products. As a result of NPI’s marking, Kean should have

investigated the patented nature of NPI’s design. Upon infomiation and belief, Kean obtained

actual knowledge of the ’l6l patent as a result of NPI’s marking of its products. To the extent

Kean did not obtain actual knowledge of the ’161 patent, it was willfully blind to the existence of

the ’l6l patent and its infringement thereof.
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163. Additionally, Kean has been aware of the ’l6l patent and of NPI’s allegations of

infringement since at least being sent this Complaint. Despite Kean’s awareness of the ’161

patent and NPI’s allegations, Kean has knowingly and actively induced others (for example, its

customers) to directly infringe the Asserted Claims of the ’l6l patent by selling the N-Star

Orion, and marketing the product in a mamer that encourages infringement. Upon infonnation

and belief, at least one customer has directly infringed one or more claims of the ’161 patent.

Further, Kean has provided and continues to provide promotional materials advertising the N

Star Orion for use as described and claimed in the ’161 patent. For example, Kean’s website

markets the N-Star Orion product, describing and depicting its functionality as a mounting

apparatus with a clamping mechanism intended to be used in a way that infringes the ’161

patent. See, e.g., Exhibit 78; Kaempf Decl. fl 41.

164. Kean also contributorily infringes the ’l6l patent. Kean offers to sell for

importation into the ‘United States the N-Star Orion knowing that such product is used to infringe

or more claims of the ’161 patent, that the mounting apparatus product is especially made for use

in the infringement of the ’161 patent, and is not a staple commodity of commerce that is suitable

for substantial non-infringing uses.

165. As shown in Exhibit 51, the N-Star Orion sold by Kean infringes at least the

asserted independent claims of the ’657 patent.

166. As shown in the photographs attached as Exhibit 47 and described in Kaempf

Decl. {[24, the N-Star Orion bears the design protected by the ’O86trademark.

b. Accused Product: Kean T-Ball V

167. NPI has obtained at least one other mounting apparatus product, the Kean T-Ball,

which Kean imported, sold for importation, and/or sold after importation, and which infringes
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the Asserted Claims of the ’636 patent, the ’278 patent, and the ’204 patent. Photographs of the

Kean T-Ball are attached as Exhibit 79.

168. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’636 patent to

Kean T-Ball is attached hereto as Exhibit 80. Exhibit 80 shows that use of the Kean T-Ball

infringes at least the asserted independent claims of the ’636 patent.

169. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’278 patent to

Kean T-Ball is attached hereto as Exhibit 81. Exhibit 81 shows that use of the Kean T-Ball

infringes at least the asserted independent claims of the ’278 patent.

170. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’204 patent to

Kean T-Ball is attached hereto as Exhibit 82. Exhibit 82 shows that use of the Kean T-Ball

infringes at least the asserted independent claims of the ’204 patent. 1

c. t Kean’s Sale of N-Star Scorpio

171. NPI has obtained at least one mounting apparatus product, the N-Star Scorpio,

which Kean imported, sold for importation, and/or sold after importation, and which infringes

the Asserted Claims of the ’204 patent, the ’148 patent, and the ’086 trademark. As described

above, photographs of the N-Star Scorpio sold by Kean are attached as Exhibit 53.

i 172. As shown in Exhibit 56, the N-Star Scorpio infringes at least the asserted

independent claims of the ’204 patent.

173. As shown in Exhibit 57, the N-Star Scorpio infringes at least the asserted

independent claims of the ’148 patent. '

174. As shown in the photographs attached as Exhibit 53 and described in Kaempf

Decl. 1]27, the N-Star Scorpio bears the design protected by the ’086 trademark.
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2) Specific Instance of Sale and Importation

175. Respondent Kean imports, sells for importation into the United States, and/or sells

within the United States after importation the N-Star Orion depicted in Exhibit 47. Pursuant to

Commission Rule 2l0.12(a)(3), Exhibit 58 is a copy of a receipt showing a sale of Kean’s N-Star

Orion, Kean T-Ball, and N-Star Scorpio within and/or for importation into the United States. As

shown in the copy of the invoice contained in Exhibit 58, the N-Star Orion product, Kean T-Ball,

and N-Star Scorpio product sold by Kean are imported from China. See Kaempf Decl. 1119.

176. Thus, Kean is violating Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 by importing,

selling for importation into the United States, and/or selling within the United States after

importation the N-Star Orion, the Kean T-Ball, the N-Star Scorpio, and other reasonably similar

products and devices, which directly, either literally or under the doctrine of equivalents, infringe

the ’l6l patent, the ’657 patent, the ’636 patent, the ’278 patent, the ’204 patent, the ’148 patent,

and the ’086 trademark. ,

G. Prolech .

1) Infringement

177. On information and belief, Prolech imports, sells for importation into the United

States, and/or sells within the United States after importation mounting apparatuses that infringe,

directly or indirectly, the ’161 patent, the ’657 patent, the ’636 patent, the ’278 patent, the ’204

patent, and the ’086 trademark. 

a. Accused Product: Prolech Motorcycle X-Grip Mount

178. NPI has obtained at least one mounting apparatus product, the Prolech Motorcycle

X-Grip Mount, which Prolech imported, sold for importation, and/or sold after importation, and

which infringes the Asserted Claims of the ’161 patent, the ’657 patent, the ’636 patent, the ’278

patent, and the ’204 patent, and the ’086 trademark. ‘Photographsof the Prolech Motorcycle X
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Grip Mount are attached as Exhibit 83. The product shown in Exhibit 83 is sold by a store that

markets itself as the “Prolech Official Shop.” See Exhibit 84; Kaempf Decl. 1]44. Upon

information and belief, this product is sold by Prolech. See Exhibit 85; Kaempf Dec]. 1]45. .

179. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’161 patent to

Prolech Motorcycle X-Grip Mount is attached hereto as Exhibit 86. Exhibit 86 shows that use of

the Prolech Motorcycle X-Grip Mount infringes at least the asserted independent claims of the

’161 patent. ,

180. Prolech has indirectly infringed at least one claim of the ’161 patent by inducing

infringement. Upon infonnation and belief, Prolech has actual knowledge of the ’161 patent and

that its actions would cause direct infringement as a result of NPI’s marking or otherwise, or

alternatively was willfully blind to these facts. For example, NPI marks its products that practice

the ’161 patent with the notation “RAM® MOUNTS,” “X-GRIP®,” “PATENTED,” ‘andNPI’s

website associates its products with the ’l6l patent. Upon information and belief, Prolech

copied the design of NPI’s practicing products. As a result of NPI’s marking, Prolech should

have investigated the patented nature of NPI’s design. Upon information and belief, Prolech

obtained actual knowledge of the ’l 61 patent as a result of NPI’s marking of its products. To the

extent Prolech did not obtain actual knowledge of the ’l6l patent, it was willfully blind to the

existence of the ’161 patent and its infringement thereof.

181. Additionally, Prolech has been aware of the ’l6l patent and of N'Pl’s allegations

of infringement since at least being sent this Complaint. Despite Prolech’s awareness of the ’161

patent and NPI’s allegations, Prolech has knowingly and actively induced others (for example,

its customers) to directly infringe the Asserted Claims of the ’l6l patent by selling the Prolech

Motorcycle X-Grip Mount, and marketing the product in a marmer that encourages infringement.
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Upon information and belief, at least one customer has directly infringed one or more claims of

the ’1'61patent. Further, Prolech has provided and continues to provide promotional materials

advertising the Prolech Motorcycle X-Grip Mount as described and claimed in the ’161 patent.

For example, Prolech’s webpage on AliExpress.com markets the Prolech Motorcycle X-Grip

Mount, describing and depicting its functionality as a mounting apparatus with a clamping

mechanism intended to be used in a way that infringes the ’l 61 patent. See, e.g., Exhibits 84-85;

Kaempf Decl. 111]44-45. i

182. Prolech also contributorily infringes the ’l6l patent. Prolech offers to sell for

importation into the United States the Prolech Motorcycle X-Grip Mount knowing that such

product is used to infringe or more claims of the ’161 patent, that the mounting apparatus

product is especially made for use in the infringement of the ’161 patent, and is not a staple

commodity of commerce that is suitable for substantial non-infringing uses.

183. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’657 patent to

Prolech Motorcycle X-Grip Mount is attached hereto as Exhibit 87. Exhibit 87 shows that use of

the Prolech Motorcycle X-Grip Mount infringes at least the asserted independent claims of the

’657 patent.

184. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’636 patent to

Prolech Motorcycle X-Grip Mount is attached hereto as Exhibit 88. Exhibit 88 shows that use of

the Prolech Motorcycle X-Grip Mount infringes at least the asserted independent claims of the

’636 patent. '

185. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’278 patent to

Prolech Motorcycle X-Grip Mount is attached hereto as Exhibit 89. Exhibit 89 shows that use of
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the Prolech Motorcycle X-Grip Mount infringes at least the asserted independent claims of-the

’278 patent.

186. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’204 patent to

Prolech Motorcycle X-Grip Mount is attached hereto as Exhibit 90. Exhibit 90 shows that use of

the Prolech Motorcycle X-Grip Mount infringes at least the asserted independent claims of the

’204 patent.

I87. As shown in the photographs attached as Exhibit 83 and described in Kaempf

Dec]. 1i43, the Prolech Motorcycle X-Grip Mount bears the design protected by the ’086

trademark.

b. Pr0lech’s Sale of MWUPP Universal X-Grip Mount

188. NPI has obtained at least one mounting apparatus product, the MWUPP Universal

X-Grip Mount, which Prolech imported, sold for importation, and/or sold alter importation, and

which infringes the Asserted Claims of the ’161 patent and the ’657 patent, and the ’086

trademark. Photographs of the MWUPP Universal X-Grip Mount are attached as Exhibit 61.

189. As shown in Exhibit 62, the MWUPP Universal X-Grip Mount infringes at least

the asserted independent claims of the ’l 61 patent.

190. Prolech has indirectly infringed at least one claim of the ’l6l patent by inducing

infringement. Prolech has been aware of the ’l61 patent and of NPI’s allegations of

infringement since at least being sent this Complaint. Despite Prolech’ awareness of the ’161

patent and NPI’s allegations, Prolech has knowingly and actively induced others (for example,

its customers) to directly infringe the Asserted Claims of the ’161 patent by selling the MWUPP

Universal X-Grip Mount, and marketing the product in a manner that encourages infringement.

Upon information and belief, at least one customer has directly infringed one or more claims of

the ’l6l patent. Further, Prolech has provided and continues to provide promotional materials
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advertising the MWUPP Universal X-Grip Mount for use as described and claimed in the ’l6l

patent. For example, Prolech’s webpages on AliExpress.com markets MWUPP Universal X

Grip Mount, describing and depicting its functionality as a mounting apparatus with a clamping

mechanism intended to be used in a way that infringes the ’161 patent. See, e.g., Exhibits 84-85;

Kaempf Decl. 111]44-45.

191. Prolech also contributorily infringes the ’l6l patent. Prolech offers to sell for

importation into the United States the MWUPP Universal X-Grip Mount knowing that such

product is used to infringe or more claims of the ’161 patent, that the mounting apparatus

product is especially made for use in the infringement of the ’161 patent, and is not a staple

commodity of commerce that is suitable for substantial non-infringing uses.

192. As shown in Exhibit 64, the MWUPP Universal X-Grip Mount infringes at least

the asserted independent claims of the ’657 patent.

193. As shown in the photographs attached as Exhibit 6l and described in Kaempf

Decl. 1i31, the MWUPP Universal X-Grip Mount bears the design protected by the T086

trademark.

2) Specific Instance of Sale and Importation I

194. Respondent Prolech imports, sells for importation into the United States, and/or

sells within the United States after importation the Prolech Motorcycle X-Grip Mount, depicted

in Exhibit 83. Pursuant to Commission Rule 2l0.l2(a)(3), Exhibit 91 is a copy of a receipt

showing a sale of Prolech’s Motorcycle X-Grip Mount within and/or for importation into the '

United States. As shown in the photograph contained in Exhibit 92, the Package Information for

the Prolech Motorcycle X-Grip Mount indicates that the product is imported from China. See

Kaempf Decl. {[47.
J
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195. Respondent Prolech imports, sells for importation into the United States, and/or

sells within the United States after importation the MWUPP Universal X-Grip Mount, depicted

in Exhibit 60. Pursuant to Commission Rule 2l0.12(a)(3), as shown in the copy of the Order

Detail contained in Exhibit 73, the MWUPP Universal X-Grip Mount sold by Prolech indicates

this product was imported into the U.S. See Kaempf Decl. 111]36-37; see also Exhibit 74.

196. Thus, Prolech is violating Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 by importing,

selling for importation into the United States, and/or selling within the United States afier

importation the Prolech Motorcycle X-Grip Mount, the MWUPP Universal X-Grip Mount, and

other reasonably similar products and devices, which directly, either literally or under the

doctrine of equivalents, infringe the ’l 61 patent, the ’657 patent, the ’636 patent, the ’278 patent

the ’204 patent, and the ’086 trademark. i

H. ZJMOTO

1) Infringement

197. On information and belief, ZJMOTO imports, sells for importation into the .

United States, and/or sells within the United States after importation mounting apparatuses that

infringe, directly or indirectly, the ’161 patent, the ’657 patent, the ’636 patent, the ’278 patent,

the ’204 patent, and the ’086 trademark. .

198. NPI has obtained at least one mounting apparatus product, the Universal

Handlebar Mount X-Grip Cell Phone Holder, which ZJMOTO imported, sold for importation,

and/or sold after importation, and which infringes the Asserted Claims of the ’16l patent, the

’657 patent, the ’636 patent, the ’278 patent, and the ’204 patent, and the ’086 trademark.

Photographs of the Universal Handlebar Mount X-Grip Cell Phone Holder are attached as

Exhibit 93. ~
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199. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’161 patent to

Universal Handlebar Mount X-Grip Cell Phone Holder is attachedlhereto as Exhibit 94. Exhibit

94 shows that use of the Universal Handlebar Mount X-Grip Cell Phone Holder infringes at least

the asserted independent claims of the ’161 patent.

200. UMOTO has indirectly infringed at least one claim of the ’l6l patent by

inducing infringement. Upon information and belief, ZJMOTO has actual knowledge of the

’161 patent and that its actions would cause direct infringement as a result of NPI’s marking or

otherwise, or altematively was willfully blind to these facts. For example, NPI marks its

products that practice the ’161 patent with the notation “RAM® MOUNTS,” “X-GRIP®,”

“PATENTED,” and NPI’s website associates its products with the ’161 patent. Upon

information and belief, ZJMOTO copied the design of NPI’s practicing products. As a result of

NPI’s marking, ZJMOTO should have investigated the patented nature of NPI’s design. Upon

information and belief, ZJMOTO obtained actual knowledge of the ’161 patent as a result of

NPI’s marking of its products. To the extent ZJMOTO did not obtain actual knowledge of the

’l6l patent, it was willfully blind to the existence of the ’161 patent and its infringement thereof.

201. Additionally, ZJMOTO has been aware of the ’l6l patent and of NPI’s

allegations of infringement since at least being sent this Complaint. Despite ZJMOTO’s

awareness of the ’161 patent and NPI’s allegations, ZJMOTO has knowingly and actively /

induced others (for example, its customers) to directly infringe the Asserted Claims of the ’161

patent by selling the ZJMOTO Universal Handlebar Mount X-Grip Cell Phone Holder, and

marketing the product in a manner that encourages infringement. Upon information and belief,

at least one customer has directly infringed one or more claims of the ’l6l patent. Further,

ZJMOTO has provided and continues to provide promotional materials advertising the ZJMOTO
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Universal Handlebar Mount X-Grip Cell Phone Holder for use as described and claimed in the

’l6l patent. For example, ZJMOTO’s Alibaba.com website markets ZJMOTO Universal

Handlebar Mount X-Grip Cell Phone Holder, describing and depicting its functionality as a

mounting apparatus with a clamping mechanism intended to be used in a way that infringes the

’l6l patent. See, e.g., Exhibit 95; KaempfDecl. ‘ll49. _

202. ZJMOTO also contributorily infringes the ’l6l patent. ZJMOTO offers to sell for

importation into the United States the ZJMOTO Universal Handlebar Mount X-Grip Cell Phone

Holder knowing that such products are used to infringe or more claims of the ’l6l patent, that

the mounting apparatus product is especially made for use in the infringement of the ’l6l patent,

and is not a staple commodity of commerce that is suitable for substantial non-infringing uses.

203. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’657 patent to

ZJMOTO Universal Handlebar Mount X-Grip Cell Phone Holder is attached hereto as Exhibit

96. Exhibit 96 shows that use of the ZJMOTO Universal Handlebar Mount X-Grip Cell Phone

Holder infringes at least the asserted independent claims of the ’657 patent.

204. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’636 patent to

ZJMOTO Universal Handlebar Mount X-Grip Cell Phone Holder is attached hereto as Exhibit

97. Exhibit 97 shows that use of the ZJMOTO Universal Handlebar Mount X-Grip Cell Phone

Holder infringes at least the asserted independent claims of the ’636 patent.

205. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’278 patent to

the ZJMOTO Universal Handlebar Mount X-Grip Cell Phone Holder is attached hereto as

Exhibit .98. Exhibit 98 shows that use of the ZJMOTO Universal Handlebar Mount X-Grip Cell

Phone Holder infringes at least the asserted independent claims of the ’278 patent.
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206. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’204 patent to

the ZJMOTO Universal Handlebar Mount X-Grip Cell Phone Holder is attached hereto as

Exhibit 99. Exhibit 99 shows that use of the ZJMOTO Universal Handlebar Mount X-Grip Cell

Phone Holder infringes at least the asserted independent claims of the ’204 patent. V

207. As shown in the photographs attached as Exhibit 93 and described in Kaempf

Decl. 1]48, the ZJMOTO Universal Handlebar Mount X-Grip Cell Phone Holder bears the design

' /
protected by the ’086 trademark.

2) SpecificInstance of Sale and Importation

208. Respondent ZJMOTO imports, sells for importation into the United States, and/or

sells within the United States afier importation the ZJMOTO Universal Handlebar Mount X-Grip

Cell Phone Holder, depicted in Exhibit 93. Pursuant to Commission Rule 210. l2(a)(3), Exhibit

100 is a copy of a receipt showing a sale of ZJMOTO’s Universal Handlebar Mount X-Grip Cell

Phone Holder within and/or for importation into the United States. As shown in the photographs

contained in Exhibit 93, ZJMOTO Universal Handlebar Mount X-Grip Cell Phone Holder

packaging is marked as “Made in China.” See KaernpfDecl.1i 48. As shown in Exhibit 101,

ZJMOTO’s Universal Handlebar Mount X-Grip Cell Phone Holder was imported from China.

See Kaempf Decl. 1]51.

209. Thus, ZJMOTO'is violating Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 by importing,

selling for importation into the United States, and/or selling within the United States after

importation the ZJMOTO Universal Handlebar Mount X-Grip Cell Phone Holder and other

reasonably similar products and devices, which directly, either literally or under the doctrine of

equivalents, infringe the ’l6l patent, the ’657 patent, the ’606 patent, the ’278 patent, the ’204

patent, and the ’086 trademark.
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I. Smilin '

1) Infringement l

210. On information and belief, Smilin imports, sells for importation into the United

States, and/or sells within the United States afier importation mounting apparatuses that infringe,

directly or indirectly, the ’l6l patent, the ’657 patent, the ’636 patent, the ’278 patent, the ’204

patent, and the ’086 trademark.

211. NPI has obtained at least one mounting apparatus product, the Smilin X-Grip

Phone Holder, which Smilin imported, sold for importation, and/or sold after importation, and

which infringes the Asserted Claims of the ’l6l patent, the ’657 patent, the ’636 patent, the ’278

patent, and the ’204 patent, and the ’086 trademark. Photographs of the Smilin X-Grip Phone

Holder are attached as Exhibit 102.

212. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’161 patent to

the Smilin X-Grip PhonelHolder is attached hereto as Exhibit 103. Exhibit 103 shows that use of

the Smilin X-Grip Phone Holder infringes at least the asserted independent claims of the ’161 '

patent. _

213. Smilin has indirectly infringed at least one claim of the ’l6l patent by inducing

infringement. Upon information and belief, Smilin has actual knowledge of the ’161 patent and

that its actions would cause direct infringement as a result of NPl’s marking or otherwise, or

altematively was willfully blind to these facts. For example, NPI marks its products that practice

the ’161 patent with the notation “RAM® MOUNTS,” “X-GRIP®,” “PATENTED,” and NPl’s

website associates its products with the ’l6l patent. Upon information and belief, Smilin copied

the design of NPI’s practicing products; As a result of NPl’s marking, Smilin should have

investigated the patented nature of NPl’s design. Upon infonnation and belief, Smilin obtained

actual knowledge of the ’161 patent as a result of NPl’s marking of its products. To the extent
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Smilin did not obtain actual knowledge of the ’161patent, it was willfully blind to the existence

of the ’161'patent and its infringement thereof.

214. ~Additionally, Smilin has been aware of the ’161 patent and of NPI’s allegations of

infringement since at least being sent this Complaint. Despite Smilin’s awareness of the ’161

patent and NPl’s allegations, Smilin has knowingly and actively induced others (for example, its

customers) to directly infringe the Asserted Claims of the ’161 patent by selling the Smilin X

Grip Phone Holder, and marketing the product in a manner that encourages infringement. Upon

information and belief, at least one customer has directly infringed one or more claims of the

’161patent. Further, Smilin has provided and continues to provide promotional materials

advertising the Smilin X-Grip Phone Holder for use as described and claimed in the ’l6l patent.

For example, Smilin’s Alibaba.com website markets the Smilin X-Grip Phone Holder, describing

and depicting its functionality as a mounting apparatus with a clamping mechanism intended to

be used in a way that infringes the ’161 patent. See, e.g., Exhibit 104; Kaempf Decl. 1]53.

215. Smilin also contributorily infringes the ’161 patent. Smilin offers to sell for

importation into the United States Smilin X-Grip Phone Holder knowing that such product is

used to infiinge or more claims of the ’161 patent, that the mounting apparatus product is

especially made for use in the infringement of the ’l6l patent, and is not a staple commodity of

commerce that is suitable for substantial non-infringing uses.

216. A claim-chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’657 patent to

Smilin X-Grip Phone Holder is attached hereto as Exhibit 105. Exhibit 105 shows that use of

the Smilin X-Grip Phone Holder infringes at least the asserted independent claims of the ’657

patent. _
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217. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’636 patent to

Smilin X-Grip Phone Holder is attached hereto as Exhibit 106. Exhibit 106 shows that use of

the Smilin X-Grip Phone Holder infringes at least the asserted independent claims of the ’636

patent.

218. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’278 patent to

the Smilin X-Grip Phone Holder is attached hereto as Exhibit l07. Exhibit 107 shows that use

of the Smilin X-Grip Phone Holder infringes at least the asserted independent claims of the ’278

patent.

219. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’204 patent to

the Smilin is attached hereto as Exhibit 108. Exhibit 108 shows that use of the Smilin X-Grip

Phone Holder infringes at least the asserted independent claims of the ’204 patent.

220. As shown in the photographs attached as Exhibit 102 and described in Kaempf

Decl. 1]52, the Smilin X-Grip Phone Holder bears the design protected by the ’086 trademark.

V 2) Specific Instance of Sale and Importation

221. Respondent Smilin imports, sells for importation into the United States, and/or

sells within the United States after importation the Smilin X-Grip Phone Holder, depicted in

Exhibit 102. Pursuant to Commission Rule 2l0.l2(a)(3), Exhibit 109 is a copy of a receipt

showing a sale of Smilin’s X-Grip Phone Holder within and/or for importation into the United

States. See Kaempf Decl. 1]54. As shown in the photograph contained in Exhibit 102, the Smilin

X-Grip Phone Holder packaging is marked as “Made in China.” See Kaempf Decl. fl 52.

222. Thus,.Smilin is violating Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 by importing,

selling for importation into the United States, and/or selling within the United States after

importation the Smilin’s X-Grip Phone Holder and other reasonably similar products and
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devices, which directly, either literally or under the doctrine of equivalents, infringe the ’161

patent, the ’657 patent, the ’636 patent,.the ’278 patent, the ’204 patent, and the ’086 trademark.

J. - New Dream ' i

1) Infringement

223. On information and belief, New Dream imports, sells for importation into the

United States, and/or sells within the United States after importation mounting apparatuses that

infringe, directly or indirectly, the ’16l patent, the ’657 patent, the ’636 patent, the ’278 patent,

the ’204 patent, and the ’086 trademark.

224. NPI has obtained at least one mounting apparatus product, the New Dream

Universal Handlebar Mount, which New Dream imported, sold for importation, and/or sold afier

importation, and which infringes the Asserted Claims of the ’161 patent, the ’657 patent, the

’636 patent, the ’278 patent, and the ’204 patent, and the ’O86trademark‘. Photographs of the

New Dream Universal Handlebar Mount are attached as Exhibit 112.

225. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’161 patent to

the New Dream Universal Handlebar Mount is attached hereto as Exhibit 113. Exhibit 113

shows that use of the New Dream Universal Handlebar Mount infringes at least the asserted

independent claims of the ’161 patent.

226. New Dream has indirectly infringed at least one claim of the ’161 patent by

inducing infringement. Upon information and belief, New Dream has actual knowledge of the

’161 patent and that its actions would cause direct infringement as a result of NPI’s marking or

otherwise, or alternatively was willfully blind to these facts. For example, NPI marks its

products that practice the ’161 patent with the notation “RAM® MOUNTS,” “X-GRlP®,”

“PATENTED,” and NPI’s website associates its products with the ’161 patent. Upon

information and belief, New Dream copied the design of NPI’s practicing products. As a result
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of NPl’s marking, New Dream should have investigated the patented nature of NPI’s design.

Upon information and belief, New Dream obtained actual knowledge of the ’161 patent as a

result of NPl’s markingyof its products. To the extent New Dream did not obtain actual

knowledge of the ’16l'patent, it was willfully blind to the existence of the ’161 patent and its

infringement thereof. 1

227. Additionally, New Dream has been aware of the ’161 patent and of NPI’s _

allegations of infringement since at least being sent this Complaint. Despite New Dream’s

awareness of the ’161 patent and NPI’s allegations, New Dream has knowingly and actively

induced others (for example, its customers) to directly infringe the Asserted Claims of the ’l61
1

patent by selling the New Dream Universal Handlebar Mount and marketing the product in a

manner that encourages infringement. Upon information and belief, at least one customer has

directly infringed one or more claims of the ’l6l patent. Further, New Dream has provided and

continues to provide promotional materials advertising the New Dream Universal Handlebar 4,

Mount for use as described and claimed in the ’l 61 patent. For example, New Dream’s

AliExpress.com website markets the New Dream Universal Handlebar Mount, describing and

depicting its functionality as a mounting apparatus with a clamping mechanism intended to be

used in a way that infringes the ’161 patent. See, e.g., Exhibit 114; Kaempf Decl. 1[58.

228. New Dream also contributorily infringes the ’161 patent. New Dream offers to

sellifor importation into the United States the New Dream Universal Handlebar Mount knowing

that such product is used to infringe or more claims of the ’161 patent, that the mounting

apparatus product is especially made for use in the infringement of the ’161 patent, and is not a

staple commodity of commerceiithat is suitable for substantial non-infringing uses.
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229. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’657 patent to
|

the New Dream Universal Handlebar Mount is attached hereto as Exhibit 115. Exhibit 115

shows that use of the New Dream Universal Handlebar Mount infringes at least the asserted

independent claims of the ’657 patent.

230. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’636 patent to

the New Dream Universal Handlebar Mount is attached hereto as Exhibit 116. Exhibit 116

shows that use the New Dream Universal Handlebar Mount infringes at least the asserted

independent claims of the ’636 patent. _

231-. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’278 patent to

the New Dream Universal Handlebar Mount is attached hereto as Exhibit 117. Exhibit 117

shows that use of the New Dream Universal Handlebar Mount infringes at least the asserted

independent claims of the ’278 patent.

232. A claim chart that applies the asserted independent claims of the ’204 patent to
\ ' .

the New Dream Universal Handlebar Mount is attached hereto as Exhibit 118. Exhibit 118 »

shows that use of the New Dream Universal Handlebar Mount infringes at least the asserted '

independent claims of the ’204 patent.

233. As shown in the photographs attached as Exhibit 112 and described in Kaempf

Decl. 1157, the New Dream Universal Handlebar Mount bears the design protected by the ’086

trademark. ~ ' K "

2) Specific Instance of Sale and Importation

234. Respondent New Dream imports, sells for importation into the United States,

and/or sells within the United States after importation the New Dream Universal Handlebar

Mount, depicted in Exhibit 112. Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.l2(a)(3), Exhibit l l9 is a
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copy of a receipt showing a sale of New Dream’s Universal Handlebar Mount within and/or for

importation into the United States. As shown in the photographs contained in Exhibit 112, the

New Dream Universal Handlebar Mount packaging is marked as “Made in China.” See Kaempf

Dec]. 1]57. Additionally, Exhibit 120, which is the Package Information for the New Dream

Universal Handlebar Mount, indicates that the product was imported from China. See Kaempf

Decl. 1]60.

235. Thus, New Dream is violating Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 by importing

selling for importation into the United States, and/or selling within the United States after_

importation the New Dream Universal Handlebar Mount and other reasonably similar products

and devices, which directly, either literally or under the doctrine of equivalents, infringe the ’161

patent, the ’657 patent, the ’.636patent, the ’278 patent, the ’204 patent, and the ’O86trademark.

V. HARMONIZED TARIFF SCHEDULE INFORMATION

236. On infonnation and belief, the articles subject to this complaint are classifiable

under at least the following headings and subheadings of the Harmonized Tariff Schedule

(“HTS”) of the United States: 3926.90.99, 4202.92.10, and 8708.29.50. These HTS numbers

are intended to be for illustration only and are not exhaustive of the products accused of

infringement in this Complaint. The HTS numbers are not intended to limit the scope of this

investigation. '

VI. RELATED LITIGATION
»

A. The ’161Patent, the ’657 Patent, and the ’278Patent

237. NPI asserted, inter alia, the ’l61 patent, the ’657 patent, and the ’278 patent in

National Products, Inc. v. John Does 1-5, one doing business as T0Games, one using tradename

Cimiva, Case No. 2: 17-cv-00760-RAJ (W.D. Wash.), filed on May 17, 2017 and assigned to

Judge Richard A. Jones. The defendants in that case are online sellers using the trade names
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“ToGames” and “Cimiva.” Through third-party discovery, NP] obtained the identity of

ToGames, which is alChinese company located in Shenzhen, China. The case is currently stayed

pending execution of service on ToGames in China.

» B. The ’086 Trademark

238. There has been related litigation involving alleged infringement of the asserted

’086 trademark and/or the design that is protected by the asserted ’086 trademark by the

following eight companies: Gamber Johnson, LLC, Arkon Resources, Inc., Wireless Accessory

Solutions, LLC d/b/a IBOLT —Wireless Accessory Solutions, LLC, Scope Mounted Electronics

LLC, Attachlt LLC, Apple Creek Whitetails LLC, YakAttack LLC, ToGames, and Cimiva.

239. NPI asserted the design that is protected by the asserted ’086 trademark against

Gamber Johnson LLC in National Products Inc. v. Gamber Johnson LLC, Case No. 2:04-cv

02524 (W.D. Wash.), filed on December 21, 2004 and now closed. On October 2, 2006, the

court in that case entered an Amended Consent Judgment in which the parties stipulated that NPI

had a “protectable trade dress in the hour-glass shaped profile of its double-socket RAM Mount

products” and that the “trade dress is non-functional and has acquired secondary meaning with

consumers.”

240. NPI asserted the ’086 trademark against Arkon Resources, Inc. in National

Products Inc. v. Arkon Resources, Inc., No. 2:15-cv-01553 (W.D. Wash.), filed on September 30,

2015 in the United States District Court for the Western District of Washington and assigned to

Judge Robert S. Lasnik. The court in that case denied Arkon Resources, Inc.’s motion-for

summary judgment that the trademark is invalid and/or not infringed. Trial is scheduled to start

on November 13, 2017.

A 241. Relatedly, Arkon Resources, Inc. filed a cancellation proceeding for the asserted

’086 trademark before the Trademark Trial and Appeal Board, Cancellation No. 920639988, on

‘$9



June 21, 2016. This proceeding is currently suspended pending final disposition of the related

action, National Products Inc. v.Arkon Resources, Inc., No. 2:15-cv-01553 (W.D.'Wash.).

Arkon Resources, Inc. also filed a declaratory judgment action in the United States District Court

for the Central District of Califomia on April 19, 2017, entitled Arkon Resource/s, Inc. v.

National Products, Inc, N0. 2:17-cv-2976 (C.D. Cal.). The case is assigned to Judge Philip S.

Gutierrez and is currently stayed pending resolution of the first case (No. 2:15-cv-01553, W.D.

Wash.).

242. NPI asserted the ’086 trademark against Wireless Accessory Solutions, LLC d/b/a

IBOLT —Wireless Accessory Solutions, LLC in National Products Inc. v. Wireless Accessory

Solutions, LLC d/b/a IBOLT - Wireless Accessory Solutions, LLC, Case No. 2: 15-cv-02024

(W.D. Wash.), filed on December 29, 2015 in the United States -DistrictCourt for the Western

District of Washington and currently assigned to Judge James L. Robart. The parties in that case

are currently conducting discovery, which is scheduled to be complete on February 1, 2018.

_ 243. NPI asserted the ’086 trademark against,Scope Mounted Electronics LLC,

Attachlt LLC and Apple Creek Whitetails LLC in National Products Inc. v. Scope Mounted

Electronics LLC et al., Case No. 2:17-cv-00014-TSZ (W.D. Wash.),'filed on January 5, 2017 in

the United States District Court for the Western District of Washington and assigned to Judge

Thomas S. Zilly. The case is currently pending. Trial is scheduled for September 17, 2018.

, 244. NPI asserted the ’086 trademark against YakAttack LLC in National Products

Inc. v. YakAttackLLC, Case No. 2:17-cv-00646-TSZ (W.D. Wash.) filed on April 24, 2017 in

the United States District Court for the Western District of Washington. The parties reached a

settlement agreement and the case is now closed.
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245. Finally, NPI asserted the ’086 trademark National Products, Inc. v. John Does I

5, one doing business as T0Games, one using tradename Cimiva, Case No. 2:17-cv—OO760-RAJ

(W.D. Wash.), filed on May 17, 2017 and assigned to Judge Richard A. Jones. The defendants

in that case are online sellers using the trade names “ToGames” and “Cimiva.” Through third

party discovery, NPI obtained the identity of ToGames, whichlis a Chinese company located in

Shenzhen, China. The case is currently stayed pending execution of service on ToGames in

China.

246. Other than those listed above, there are currently no other litigation or

administrative proceedings related to the subject matter of this complaint.

VII. DOMESTIC INDUSTRY RELATING TO THE ASSERTED PATENTS AND
TRADEMARK

247. A domestic industry for the purposes of 19 U.S.C. § 1337(a)(2), as defined in 19

U.S.C. § l337(a)(3)(A), (B), and (C), exists with respect to NPI’s significant and continuous

investment in plant and equipment, significant and continuous employment of labor, and

substantial and ongoing investment in engineering and research and development in its products

that practice or embody the Asserted Patents and Trademark.

248. NPI manufactures and sells products (the “Domestic Industry Products”) that

practice the Asserted Patents and Trademark. Pursuant to Commission Rule 21O.12(a)(9)(ix),

NPI submits charts that apply an exemplary claim of each Asserted Patent and the Asserted

Trademark to a representative Domestic Industry Product. The following table identifies

representative Domestic Industry Products and the corresponding charts:

t- l l .om no 11 »xl?il§i*
U.S. Patent No. The RAM Universal X-Grip 121

8,544,161 Cradle and products containing the
RAM Universal X-Grip Cradle

U.S. Patent No. The RAM Universal X-Grip 122
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D703,65 7 Cradle and products containing the .
RAM Universal X-Grip Cradle

U.S. Patent No.
8,186,636

RAM Rail Baseand products 123
including that component, such as
the RAM Handlebar Rail Mount

U.S. Patent No.
D57l,278

RAM Rail Base and products 124
including that component, such as
the RAM Handlebar Rail Mount

U.S. Patent No.
D574,204

RAM Rail Base and products 125
including that component, such as
the RAM Handlebar Rail Mount

U.S. Patent No.
9,568,148

RAM Universal Finger-Grip Cradle 126
and products containing the RAM
Universal Finger-Grip Cradle

No. 4,254,086
U.S. Trademark Reg. RAM Double Socket Ann and 127

products including that component, .
such as the RAM Handlebar Rail
Mount

A. NPI’s Significant Investment in Plant and Equipment

249. A domestic industry as defined by 19 U.S.C. § l337(a)(3)(A) exists in the United

States with respect to the Domestic Industry Products by reason of NPI’s significant investment \

in plant and equipment.

250. NPI manufactures all of its products, including the Domestic Industry Products, in

the United States. To do so, NPI operates numerous facilities in and around Seattle, Washington,

including 7 manufacturing buildings comprising approximately 80,000 square feet of

manufacturing space. Likewise, NPl’s offices overseeing the manufacturing of its products are
\
1

located in Seattle, Washington and occupy approximately 4,000 square feet. NPI also maintains

shipping facilities near its headquarters in Seattle, Washington that occupy approximately 5,000

square feet. Further details of NPI’s significant investment in plant and equipment with respect

to the Domestic Industry Products; including evidence allocating NPI’s investment among each

of the Asserted Patents and Trademarks, are provided in the Confidential Declaration of Jeffrey

D. Carnevali, attached as confidential Exhibit 128.
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B. NPl’s Significant Employment of Labor and Capital

251. A domestic industry as defined by 19 U.S.C. § 1337(a)(3)(B) exists in the United

States with respect to the Domestic Industry Products by reason of NPl’s significant employment

of labor and capital.

252. At its facilities, NPI employs 300 people to perform engineering, research,

development, assembly, packaging, testing, repair, and customer service relating to the Domestic

Industry Products. NPI invests a significant amount of money in salaries, incentives, and other

compensation for these individuals, and also makes significant investments in operating

expenses, capital expenditures, and material costs in the United States to support the work of

these employees in connection with the Domestic Industry Products. Further details of NPI’s

significant employment of labor and capital with respect to the Domestic Industry Products,

including evidence allocating NPl’s industry among each of the Asserted Patents and

Trademarks, are provided in the Confidential Declaration of Jeffrey D. Camevali, attached as

confidential Exhibit 128. .

C. NPl’s Substantial Investment in the Exploitation of the Asserted Patents and
Trademark

253. A domestic industry as defined by l9 U.S.C. § l337(a)(3)(C) exists in the United

States with respect to the Asserted Patents and Trademark by reason of NPI’s substantial

investment in its engineering, research, and development directed to its Domestic Industry

Products.

254. As described above, NPI has been a leader in the design, manufacture, and sale of

innovative mounting systems since its founding in Seattle in 1991. NPI invests significant

amounts of money in the research and development of its innovative mounting systems,

including those related to the Asserted Patents and Trademark. All of NPI’s substantial _
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investment in engineering, research, and development is realized in the United States.

Specifically, NPI employees in Seattle work to design and develop the Domestic Industry

Products and the technology of the Asserted Patents and Trademark. NPI’s investments include

salary and compensation for its engineers, training, and investments in research and development

equipment and materials. Additionally, NPI invests significant amounts of money annually on

marketing and advertisements, including those relating to the Domestic Industry Products.

Further details of NPI’s substantial investment in the exploitation of the Asserted Patents and

Trademark, including evidence allocating NPI’s sales of Domestic Industry Products among each

of the Asserted Patents and Trademarks, are provided in the Declaration of Jeffrey D. Carnevali,

attached as confidential Exhibit 128.

VIII. RELIEF

WHEREFORE, by reason of the foregoing, NPI requests that the Commission:

1) Institute an investigation pursuant to Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as

amended, 19 U.S.C. § I337, with respect to Respondents’ violation of Section

337 based on (1) unfair methods of competition and unfair acts in the

importation of articles which threaten to, or do, destroy or substantially injure

an industry in the United States, prevent the establishment of such an industry,

and/or restrain or monopolize trade and commerce in the United States; and

(2) the importation into the United States, the sale for importation into the

United States, and/or the sale Withinthe United States afier importation of

articles that infringe the Asserted Patents and Trademark;

2) Schedule and conduct a hearing on permanent relief pursuant to l9 U.S.C.

§ l337(d) and (t) of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended;
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Issue a general exclusion order pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § l337(d) or, if a

general exclusion order is not granted, a limited exclusion order directed

specifically to each named Respondent, excluding from entry into the United

States articles imported in such a manner as to constitute unfair methods of

competition and unfair acts and/or articles that infringe the ’16l patent, the
1

’657 patent, the ‘636 patent, the ’278 patent, the ’204 patent, the ’148 patent,

and the ’086 trademark;

Issue a cease and desist order pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § l337(f) prohibiting each

domestic Respondent from engaging in the unlawful importation and/or the

sale within the United States after importation of articles imported in such a

manner as to constitute unfair methods of competition and unfair acts and/or

articles that infringe the Asserted Patents and Trademark; and '

Impose a bond upon Respondents who continue to import articles imported in

such a manner as to constitute unfair methods of competition and unfair acts

and/or infringing articles during the 60-day-Presidential review period per 19

U.S.C. § 1337(j); and issue such other and further relief as the Commission

deems just and proper under the law, based upon the facts determined by the

investigation and the authority of the Commission. I
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